THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In the Supreme Court

---

ON PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI  
TO THE COURT OF APPEALS,  
WRIT GRANTED ON 08-02-18

---

Appellate Case No. 2017-000743

---

Betty Fisher and Lisa Fisher, .....Petitioner

v.

Bessie Huckabee.....Respondent

---

**PETITIONERS' BRIEF ON THE MERITS;  
JOINDER BY BETTY FISHER IN BRIEF ON THE MERITS  
OF THE PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI**

---

LISA FISHER, ESQUIRE (*Pro Se*)  
P.O. Box 91112  
Long Beach, CA 90809-1112  
562-965-3267  
[lfisher6736@yahoo.com](mailto:lfisher6736@yahoo.com)

(Petitioner)

BETTY FISHER (*Pro Se*)  
P.O. Box 91112  
Long Beach, CA 90809-1112

(Petitioner requesting Joinder in said Brief)

## QUESTIONS PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

In the Consolidated Opinion, the Court of Appeals summarized Petitioners' questions presented. The complex issues related to Alice Shaw Baker's estate are interconnected and mandate reversal by this Court.

Pursuant to the requirements set forth in Rule 242(I), the questions presented will be deemed to include every subsidiary question fairly comprised therein as requested by this Court's order. Petitioners do not waive any argument, and repeat and restate all questions originally presented in their briefing, and as set forth in their Petition for Rehearing. It also provides the basis of petitioners' good faith arguments supporting these issues.

Since this Court ordered Petitioner Lisa Fisher to turn over Alice Shaw Baker's property to Respondent Bessie Huckabee on June 13, 2018, consideration by this Supreme Court will give other litigants direction and precedent to prevent injustice in the future.

Petitioners respectfully request the court consider the importance of the issues:

2) and 7) Whether the Probate Court erred in appointing a Special Fiduciary, *when* the court lacked jurisdiction to make any orders related to the assets of Alice Shaw Baker, due to her death which was a denial of Due Process and Equal Protection?<sup>2</sup>

3) Whether the Court of Appeal erred in finding that Respondent Bessie Huckabee had standing, when there is pending litigation regarding revocation of Alice Shaw Baker's will and related will contest?

4) Whether the Court of Appeals erred in requiring Rule 11 notice in this matter?

---

<sup>2</sup>  
- It is important to note that the entire case had been removed to the Circuit Court. Petitioners contend that Peter Kouten, on behalf of Respondents, sought relief in the Probate Court due to his personal relationship with Judges Condon and Curry, in an effort to forum shop.

- 5) Whether the Court of Appeal's consideration of Petitioner Lisa Fisher's right to compensation led to the correct result of "remand" to preclude a takings by the Court, yet led to directions and factual assertions that give credibility to false accusations considering the valuation of Alice Shaw Baker's estate and any depletion of the estate, and are prejudicial? Also, Whether the Court of Appeal erred in remanding the issue of Petitioner Lisa Fisher's right to compensation to the probate court, when any order related to the approval of fees must be considered in the estate case (which was removed to the Circuit Court)? If so, Do these issues implicate Equal Protection, Due Process, and the Takings Clause?
- 6) Whether the Probate court's imposition of an injunction on funds held in California without following any formalities, when the assets were under the jurisdiction of the Circuit Court, and when none of the standards for "Emergent need" under S.C. Code Ann. § 62-7-704(e) were met, created a Due Process and Equal Protection Violation?
- 8) Whether the probate court erred in failing to grant Lisa Fisher an extension, when there is pending litigation and appellate review?
- 9) Whether the failure to give Petitioner Betty Fisher constitutionally (and statutory) required notice related to the Motion for a Special Fiduciary was prejudicial and in violation of Due Process?

## INTRODUCTION

Some might say that the decision by this Honorable Court (in the related matter, case no. 2018-000566) to order Petitioner Lisa Fisher to turn over Alice Shaw Baker's property to Bessie Huckabee cut out the heart of this case, ( i.e. Alice Shaw Baker's property was turned over to those who breached their duty to her) and essentially decided this petition.

Petitioner Lisa Fisher argues that while the heart of the case may be gone, the soul (i.e. legal analysis) of the case will still mandate reversal—a reversal that will provide for clear authority for litigants in the future and establish the good faith of Petitioners and protect Alice Shaw Baker's property.

This case began simply. A proper will contest/constructive trust case. However, the analysis of legal principles toward the path to justice, was ravaged by disquiet, error, and confusion. This was a direct result of Attorney Peter Kouten's blatant refusal to recuse himself from acting as counsel for Respondents. He had been court appointed attorney, guardian ad litem and visitor for Alice Shaw Baker in the underlying guardian/conservatorship case.<sup>3</sup> He knew or should have known that his representation of Respondents, while attorney for Alice, violated ethical principles and precedent outlined in the case of *Townsend v. Townsend*, 474 S.E. 2d 424

---

<sup>3</sup> In the related action, the trial transcript shows that now Peter Kouten indicated that he was acting solely as guardian ad litem. Thereby, implicitly arguing that he did not violate any ethical rules. The problem with this argument is that it is not a correct statement of the law as outlined in *Townsend* and had never been raised by him or Respondents in the 9 years of litigation! The assertion cripples accepted prohibitions against Court appointed attorneys profiting from such appointments and from representing adverse interests. (Model Rule 1.7) This is especially important since the legislature has changed the procedure and duties of appointment of court appointed attorneys and guardian ad litem based on the Constitutional issues, inherent conflict between the roles of GAL and attorneys, and protections necessary to protect the elderly or vulnerable adults. (See S.C. Code § 62-5-403(b) and 62-5-101). Said changes to go into effect in 2019.

(1996). His representation corrupted the entire proceedings, and delayed the trial in this matter.<sup>4</sup>

All of petitioners' actions were in good faith and meant to ensure that Alice Shaw Baker's intentions were honored. South Carolina relies on this modern view of law governing wills and trusts—as demonstrated by the statutory authority in S.C. Code § 62-2-601 which mandates reformation of a will “even if unambiguous, to conform the terms to the testator's intention if it is proved by clear and convincing evidence that the testator's intent and the terms of the will were affected by a mistake of fact or law, whether in expression or inducement.” (Emphasis added) See also S.C. Code § 62-7-407; 62-7-602(c)(2)(B). Petitioners contend that this is a case where following the statutory authorities and ensuring Constitutional protections can result in only one conclusion, i.e. the Court of Appeal's Opinion must be reversed.

The Opinion certainly impacts the *Estate of Alice Shaw Baker* and her family on a personal level, however the specter of the future and public policy precedents that will effect the citizens of South Carolina make it ripe for consideration. This court has an opportunity to clarify

---

<sup>4</sup> The court in *PDHC v. Estate of Thompson*, 418 S.C. 557 (2016) explained :

“The main purpose of Rule 11, however, is to deter future litigation abuse, not compensate the opposing party. By waiting until the case has been fully litigated and decided by the appellate courts on the merits, the Estate failed to challenge or prevent any litigation abuse from occurring in this case. Instead, **the Estate made the tactical decision of waiting until the conclusion of the case to recover attorney's fees for all of the abuses that took place over a three-year period.** In our view, the Estate's delay in bringing the motion for sanctions failed to serve the deterrence and efficiency purposes of Rule 11 and, therefore, was unreasonable.” (Emphasis added)

The *Estate of Thompson* stands for the proposition that the Respondents can not sit on their rights or make tactical decisions to unjustly enrich themselves. Petitioner Lisa Fisher's actions were in good faith, and Respondents can not now complain.

policies that will support the statutory protections which mandate due process.

Petitioners have argued that the laws governing the issues set forth herein will provide guidance in many settings.

For instance:

1) If a conservator is not permitted to protect the assets of a conservatee after her death, than the Court is effectively forcing an estate to incur unnecessary costs, and allowing decedent's estates to be subject to control by strangers. This is contrary to long held principles mandating a conservator/fiduciary to protect the assets and distribute to the proper personal representative.

2) If the probate court is allowed unrestrained authority to impose injunctive relief without following statutory mandates under S.C. Code § 62-7-704(e), than parties in probate litigation are not provided with the same Due Process rights and Equal protection of the Law provided to civil litigants.

3) If the probate court is allowed to interfere with a circuit court's jurisdiction over decedent's estates, than parties will be subject to surprise and the legislative mandate for removal under S.C. Code § 62-1-302 is meaningless and contrary to statutory provisions.

Additionally, these unavoidable public policies created by the Court of Appeals Opinion will stand in sharp contrast to the traditional values guaranteeing protection of decedent's estates by conservators/fiduciaries/trustees after their ward dies.

The Court of Appeals' Opinion creates confusion that disrupts the future protection of decedents' estates. South Carolina Fiduciaries will be led down a path of destruction, as houses are left unprotected, taxes are not filed, and those who seek recovery of their loved ones's estates may end up in the spotlight, rather than wrongdoers who seek to abscond with the Estate, based on an unbending rule that a conservator may not expend estate assets after the death of their ward.

The Opinion establishes dangerous public policies that impairs and compels a breach of fiduciary duty if a conservator cannot protect the assets of a decedent. At the same time, the opinion effectively morphs Petitioners' arguments into legal trivialities, despite the effect such a decision has on the life and death of Alice Shaw Baker. It replaces the important legal concept of "preservation of the status quo" with unfettered authority of a probate court to appoint an unknown Special Fiduciary which will significantly dissipate the Estate of Alice Shaw Baker and diminish her wish that her estate go to animal charities.

As set forth herein, it is contrary to the law related to temporary trustees and fiduciaries, and laws establishing a continuing duty to protect a decedent's property until there is delivery to the proper person.

Reversal of the Court of Appeals' Opinion will be the first "action" necessary to preserve estate assets, and provide fiduciaries/conservators with guidance in cases involving elder abuse as set forth herein.

Petitioners pray that this Court **reverse** the Court of Appeals' decision, Opinion No. 2016-UP-528, Heard October 3, 2016-Filed December 21, 2016, the probate court orders, and the Circuit Court orders affirming said orders.

## STANDARD OF REVIEW

It is well settled that this court is free to decide questions of law with no particular deference to the lower court. *See* S.C. Const. art. V, §§ 5 and 9; S.C. Code Ann. §§ 14-3-320 and -330 (1976 & Supp.1999); S.C. Code Ann. § 14-8-200 (Supp.1999) (granting Supreme Court and Court of Appeals the jurisdiction to correct errors of law in both law and equity actions); *I'On v. Town of Mt. Pleasant*, 338 S.C. 406, 526 S.E.2d 716 (2000).)

Rule 242, SCACR specifically addresses the types of cases that this Supreme Court will generally consider:

- (1) Where there are novel questions of law.
- (2) Where there is a dissent in the decision of the Court of Appeals.
- (3) Where the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a prior decision of the Supreme Court.
- (4) Where substantial constitutional issues are directly involved.
- (5) Where a federal question is included and the decision of the Court of Appeals conflicts with a decision of the United States Supreme Court."

The Supreme Court did not give any direction as to the basis for the grant, other than the fact that the related case will be considered by this Court at the same time as the related case.

The traditional view requiring a former fiduciary /conservator to protect estate assets until there is an appropriate appointment is not novel. Yet, its application by both the probate court and the Court of Appeals will create distinct and novel questions of law.

The United States Supreme Court has explained that where there is insufficient public policy on a subject, **it may be the function of the courts by their judgments to establish**

**public policy where none on the subject exists...”** (*See Page v. Winter*, 240 S.C. 516, 126 S.E. 2d 570 (1962), emphasis added.)

As briefly referenced, the Legislature has already addressed some of the concerns which Lisa Fisher raised in this case. The duplicity of Peter Kouten in representing both Alice and Respondents, at the same time and after her death, raises ethical questions by permitting a court appointed attorney to use the case to generate future fees. Having one person act as the court appointed attorney and the guardian ad litem is an inherent conflict of interests. These are not whimsical arguments, trivial pursuits, or efforts to delay prosecution of the case. As set forth by the statutory scheme that goes into effect in 2019, these issues were, are, and will continue to require analysis, so that the very citizens that conservatorships are meant to protect, will have some protections. If Peter Kouten had done his job, he would have known that Alice Shaw Baker did not want her monies to go to Respondents, he would have known that the life well lived, by Alice Shaw Baker, was a life devoted to the protection and care of animals. He made a conscious choice to put his financial position above his duty to Alice—it was a non waiveable conflict.<sup>5</sup>

Therefore, whether this court deems it appropriate to reverse based on the novel aspects of the case, the Constitutional importance of the case, the statutory requirements, or the public policy arguments , Petitioners believe that the law of South Carolina mandates reversal.

---

<sup>5</sup> The relationship of Peter Kouten with the Charleston Probate Court, made it suspect that he planned the unprecedented decision to return to the probate court for the filing of the Motion for Special Fiduciary, rather than remain in the Circuit Court (where the case had been previously removed). Petitioners should not be required to forego legal procedures and protections, because of the favor wrongly garnered on Respondents due to personal relationships.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On February 25, 2009, Alice Shaw Baker died. (Appendix . 203)<sup>6</sup> Her great niece, Petitioner Lisa Fisher, Esquire, had helped her since involuntary commitment proceedings were initiated without notice to her family, including her niece, Petitioner Betty Fisher. (App. 70, 73, 76.)

On October 29, 2008, Lisa Fisher was appointed her guardian and conservator. (App. 28) After her appointment, Lisa Fisher traveled regularly to South Carolina to visit her great aunt, and ensure her health and well being. (App. 249, P. 250)

Petitioner also visited with Ms. Shaw Baker before her death, and knew that she had revoked her Will, and reaffirmed her desire that all of her property benefit these animal charities. (App. 321, 342)

After Ms. Shaw Baker's death, Petitioner initiated litigation on April 27, 2009 in the Charleston County Probate Court and removed it to the Charleston County Court of Common Pleas on May 13, 2009 (Case no. 2009-CP-10-3010). (App. 219, 220). These proceedings included Alice Shaw Baker's family's attack of the validity of the informal appointment of Respondent Bessie Huckabee ("Respondent"), the Will Contest, the appointment of a Special Administrator, the effect of Attorney Peter Kouten's ex-parte communication in the lower court proceedings, and bond provisions. (Pursuant to SCACR 201(d), Request for Judicial Notice, Court of Appeals, Case no. 2014-001267)

Petitioner obtained extensions regarding Ms. Shaw Baker's property from the Probate Court pending resolution by the Supreme Court and proper trial of the Will Contest, and at all

---

<sup>6</sup> Appendix is hereinafter referred as "App." Said Appendix is filed concurrently.

times maintained proper control of Ms. Shaw Baker's property.<sup>7</sup>

After nearly three years of preservation of the status quo by Petitioner's daughter Lisa Fisher, while these matters were before the Supreme Court, Respondent filed her *Motion for Special Fiduciary*. (App. 281) No affidavits were attached to the motion. Respondent knew that the appointment of a Third Party Special Fiduciary, would affect the Estate litigation and was contrary to Ms. Shaw Baker's desires that the monies be used solely for Animal Charities. (App. 321, 327)

Petitioner filed several pleadings objecting and opposing said motion. The court set the Motion for Appointment of a Special Fiduciary for hearing on August 17, 2011. ( App. 548) At the hearing the Court appointed a Special Fiduciary, J. Heyward Harvey, Esquire, without any information about his record, any potential conflicts of interest, and/or his relationship to the parties.

At the hearing, Petitioners' counsel objected to Respondent's counsel, Peter Kouten's discussion of contested issues relating to Petitioner's accounting. (App. 551)

Over Petitioner's objection, the court allowed Respondent's Counsel to discuss the accounts (without allowing him to "go into specificity" but "just generalities"). ( App. 551)

During argument, the court denied Petitioner the authority to speak:

"THE COURT: No, this is a motion, and this is really between the attorneys, and I just want to know what your position is, legal position, as to what her legal authority is to still disburse moneys when in fact the conservatorship has -- when she has been discharged, and the only thing the Court has been looking for are the annual accountings." (App. 553, 575)

---

<sup>7</sup> Petitioner has advanced all monies for the protection of Alice Shaw Baker's properties to ensure that no losses are incurred and that her desires that her monies benefit Animal Charities is honored. (See Restatement (Third) of Trusts §34)

Without taking any evidence or allowing any testimony, or even taking judicial notice of any proceedings, Respondent's counsel made numerous statements and accusations, Petitioner's counsel stated:

“MR. COOPER: Your Honor, without going through all of them, there are a lot of things that Mr. Kouten said in terms of factual representations about the expenditure and so forth, we disagree with and certainly we think are beyond the scope of this hearing.” (App. 558, 593 , ll. 18-23)

The Court's failure to allow Petitioner present admissible evidence, or to set her *Motions for Reconsideration* on calendar precluded her from responding to the court's concerns and violated her Due process rights. Respondent did not object nor did she oppose the Motion. However, the record is silent as to whether the court considered said affidavits. The order dated September 28, 2011 appointed the Special Fiduciary. (App. 55)

On or about October 24, 2011, the Probate Court served its *Order Denying Motions for Reconsideration and Opposition of Probate Court Order Appointing Special Fiduciary, Motion to Strike, etc.* (App. 61-63 )

Petitioners timely appealed. (App. 398) Prior to the change in rules governing probate appeals, Petitioners filed their Statement of Grounds on December 9, 2011. (App.455) Respondent did not file her Notice of Appearance until March 20, 2014. (App. 538) . Respondent failed to file any timely opposition. The court set the matter for hearing on July 16, 2014. (App. 560)

On or about August 18, 2014, the court issued its Form 4 judgment on Petitioner's appeal. Petitioner timely filed her *Notice of Appeal* on September 19, 2014.( App. 542)

From the beginning of these cases, they have been fraught with factual inaccuracies based on the lower Courts' reliance on Respondent's unsubstantiated reference to "facts". The record demonstrates that there was no record referenced by Respondent.

The motion for appointment of special fiduciary was not supported by affidavits, the court heard no testimony, no exhibits were introduced, no evidence was introduced at all-- other than Attorney Peter Kouten's unsubstantiated argument. (App. 281) Moreover, the court denied Petitioners' request to rebut the argument. (App. 551, 567, ll.4-8, 548, 553, 575, ll. 7-14)

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