THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

RECEIVED

In The Supreme Court

SEP 18 2018

S.C. SUPREME COURT

ON PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI
TO THE COURT OF APPEALS,
WRIT GRANTED ON 08-02-18

Appellate Case No. 2017-000743

Betty Fisher and Lisa Fisher, Petitioners

v.

Bessie Huckabee, Respondent

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

Jessica L. Crowley
P.O. Box 30189
Charleston, SC 29417
Tel. (843) 789-9614
jcrowleylawfirm@gmail.com
Attorney for Respondent

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

ARGUMENT

I. PETITIONERS' APPEAL SHOULD BE DISMISSED AS THE ISSUES ON APPEAL HAVE BECOME MOOT AND PETITIONERS LACK STANDING TO BRING THE APPEAL.

a. THE ISSUE OF APPOINTMENT OF SPECIAL FIDUCIARY TO HOLD CONSERVATORSHIP ASSETS PENDING RESOLUTION OF THE WILL CONTEST IS MOOT AND THIS APPEAL SHOULD BE DISMISSED.

On May 11, 2011, the Charleston County Probate Court appointed J. Heyward Harvey, Jr., Esquire as Special Fiduciary to marshal and hold conservatorship assets pending resolution of the will contest in Mrs. Shaw-Baker's estate. (App. 55). The will contest was tried in October 2017 and March 2018. The issue of appointment of Special Fiduciary is now moot and the appeal should be dismissed. "When an event occurs while a case is pending on appeal so there remains no actual controversy between the parties, the case is moot and the appeal will be dismissed." First Union Nat. Bank of S.C. v. FCVS Commc'ns, 328 S.C. 290, 292, 494 S.E.2d 429, 430 (1997). "A case is moot where a judgment rendered by the Court will have no practical legal effect upon an existing controversy because an intervening event renders any grant of effectual relief impossible for the Court." S.C. Ret. Sys. Inv. Comm'n v. Loftis, 402 S.C. 382, 384, 741 S.E.2d 757, 758 (2013). The function of appellate courts is not to give opinions on abstract questions, but to decide actual controversies injuriously affecting the rights of some party to the litigation; accordingly, issues which have become moot are not a proper subject of review. Wallace v. City of York, 276 S.C. 693, 281 S.E.2d 487 (1981); Grant v. Osgood, 241 S.C. 104, 127 S.E.2d 202 (1962); Berry v. Zahler, 220 S.C. 86, 66 S.E.2d 459 (1951). "Where the questions presented by an appeal are moot, the appeal will be dismissed." Schein v. Lamar, 284 S.C. 252, 255, 325 S.E.2d 573m 574 (Ct. App. 1985).

At the time Petitioners filed their Petition for Certiorari with this Court, they also had an action pending in the Circuit Court challenging the validity of the Last Will and Testament of Alice Shaw-Baker and related matters pertaining to Mrs. Shaw-Baker's estate. (App. 56, 287, 313). Although the Probate Court's order of May 11, 2009 discharged her as conservator and discharged her of any duty she had, Lisa Fisher refused to turn over the conservatorship assets pending trial on the will contest. (App. 248, 273-80). Jury trial on the validity of the Last Will and Testament naming Bessie Huckabee Personal Representative of the Estate of Alice Shaw-Baker was held in October 2017, with the jury finding that the Last Will and Testament, and thus Ms. Huckabee's appointment as personal representative, was valid. (Jury Verdict). Bench trial on the bifurcated equitable claims pertaining to Mrs. Shaw-Baker's estate was thereafter held in March 2018, and final orders upholding the validity of the will, dismissing Petitioners' remaining claims and ordering Lisa Fisher to turn over the estate assets to Bessie Huckabee were issued in March and June 2018. (Orders of Honorable Thomas Hughston, Jr. executed March 21, 2018 and July 9, 2018 in Fisher, et al. v. Huckabee, et al., 2009-CP-10-3010, Jury Verdict). This Court subsequently ordered Lisa Fisher to turn over all assets in her possession to the circuit court or to the personal representative. (Order of Supreme Court executed June 13, 2018, filed June 14, 2018). Lisa Fisher has turned over most of the conservatorship assets in her possession.⁸ (*Objection and Opposition to Informal Correspondence of Jessica Crowley Letter Dated June 25, 2018; Notice of Compliance with Order re Delivery of Alice Shaw Baker's Property and Assets*, received June 27, 2018 in Appellate Case No. 2018-000556) (hereinafter "Notice of Compliance").

⁸ In defiance of this Court's direct order to turn over all property, Lisa Fisher has taken it upon herself to retain some of Mrs. Shaw-Baker's property in violation of the June 13, 2018 Order. See Notice of Compliance.

Regardless of the outcome of Petitioners' appeals related to the will contest, the assets of the decedent are rightfully in the estate and no longer in the conservatorship, which has been terminated. (App. 52). Even if this Court reversed the appointment of Special Fiduciary, there is no scenario wherein the estate assets would be returned to the conservatorship of Alice Shaw-Baker. The claim regarding the Probate Court's orders freezing the conservatorship assets is also moot as all of the funds held in the conservatorship have been delivered to the Circuit Court pursuant to this Court's Order of June 13, 2018. (Order of the Supreme Court executed June 13, 2018 and filed June 14, 2018 in Appellate Case No. 2018-000566). The frozen accounts have been closed and Lisa Fisher no longer retains the estate assets as former conservator.

Petitioners' Issues 2 and 7 relate to the jurisdiction of the Probate Court to appoint a Special Fiduciary pending resolution of the will contest. This issue of appointment of a Special Fiduciary is now moot following trial on the will contest and should be dismissed. Issue 3 relates to personal representative Bessie Huckabee's standing to request appointment of a Special Fiduciary during the pendency of the will contest. The trial on the validity of Alice Shaw-Baker's last will and testament has occurred, confirming Bessie Huckabee's appointment as Personal Representative, and this issue is therefore moot and should be dismissed. Issue 4 regards to an alleged violation of Rule 11 notice in the filing of Respondent's Motion for Appointment of Special Fiduciary, which Petitioner claims should void the order. Voiding the Order would have no effect and the issue is therefore moot and should be dismissed. The Court of Appeals remanded the issue of conservatorship fees to the Probate Court and therefore Petitioners' Issue 5 is not properly before this Court and should be dismissed. Petitioners' Issue 6 pertains to the Probate Court's Orders freezing the conservatorship accounts. All money in these accounts has been turned over to the Circuit Court and the accounts have been closed. This

issue is therefore moot and should be dismissed. Petitioners' Issue 8 regards the Probate Court's denial of Lisa Fisher's Motion for Extension to turn over conservatorship assets to the Personal Representative. Lisa Fisher is no longer in possession of any of the conservatorship assets and this issue is therefore moot and should be dismissed. Issue 9 pertains to the alleged failure of Respondent to give notice of the Motion for Appointment of Special Fiduciary to Betty Fisher. The assets have been transferred to the estate and this issue is therefore moot and should be dismissed.

The issue of appointment of a Special Fiduciary to hold the conservatorship assets pending resolution of the will contest is moot, the assets have all been transferred to the estate, and all portions of this appeal relating to said appointment should therefore be dismissed.

b. PETITIONERS LACK STANDING TO BRING AN APPEAL ON BEHALF OF THE CONSERVATORSHIP OF ALICE SHAW-BAKER.

Petitioners have no standing to maintain their appeal on the issues on which this Court has granted Certiorari. "A threshold inquiry for any court is a determination of justiciability, i.e., whether the litigation presents an active case or controversy. No justiciable controversy is presented unless the plaintiff has standing to maintain the action." Brock v. Bennett, 313 S.C. 513, 519, 443 S.E.2d 409, 413 (Ct.App.1994). "A plaintiff must allege an actual controversy in which he has a personal stake." Energy Research Found. v. Waddell, 295 S.C. 100, 102, 367 S.E.2d 419, 420 (1988). "For a plaintiff to possess standing three elements must be satisfied. First, the plaintiff must have suffered an injury-in-fact, which is a concrete, particularized, and actual or imminent invasion of a legally protected interest. Second, a causal connection must exist between the injury and the challenged conduct. Third, it must be likely that a favorable decision will redress the injury." Carnival Corp. v. Historic Ansonborough Neighborhood Ass'n, 407 S.C. 67, 753 S.E. 2d 846, 850 (2014) (internal citations omitted). The injury alleged cannot

be conjectural or hypothetical. Atc South, Inc. v. Charleston County, 380 S.C. 19, 669 S.E.2d 337 (2008).

Lisa Fisher has brought this appeal in her capacity as “former conservator” for Alice Shaw-Baker. Issues presented by Petitioner, to include 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 and 8, all pertain to Lisa Fisher’s role as conservator for Alice Shaw-Baker. Issue 5 regarding the probate court’s denial of Ms. Fisher’s request for fees has been remanded and so is not properly before this Court. Issue 9 pertains exclusively to Ms. Betty Fisher’s receipt of notice and cannot be argued by Lisa Fisher (see Section VIII, below).⁹ Lisa Fisher does not represent the estate of Alice Shaw-Baker and she has no duty under the law to retain the assets or act on behalf of the estate. In the May 11, 2009 Order discharging Lisa Fisher as conservator for Alice Shaw-Baker, Judge Curry found:

South Carolina Probate Code Section 62-5-425(c)(1) states that the Conservator, when satisfied that the disability has ceased, shall petition the court. That Petition is one for discharge. Subpart (d) of Section 425 informs the conservator, as part of her duty and under the jurisdiction of this Court, that if a protected person dies, the Conservator shall delivery [sic] the estate assets. The Court finds that upon the death of Ms. Shaw-Baker, the conservator should have petitioned this Court for discharge. The unambiguous meaning of this statute is to terminate the authority of the Conservator and deliver the estate assets to the Personal Representative of the estate. (App. 53).

Lisa Fisher and Betty Fisher cannot show that they have a personal stake in this appeal because the harm complained of pertains to the assets belonging to Alice Shaw-Baker and her estate, not to Lisa or Betty Fisher individually. See, Fisher v. Huckabee, Opinion No. 27765 (February 28, 2018) (no third party standing to act on behalf of the decedent). Petitioners cannot show an injury-in-fact arising out of any of the issues before this Court. Lisa Fisher is

⁹ Respondent contends that Betty Fisher received statutory notice by and through her counsel, John Hughes Cooper, although it was not required. (App. 281-84).

proceeding pro se and cannot argue in a representative capacity for Mrs. Shaw-Baker, Betty Fisher, or the Attorney General's office without engaging in the unauthorized practice of law.

Lisa and Betty Fisher lack standing to argue on behalf of the conservatorship estate of Alice Shaw-Baker and this appeal should therefore be dismissed.

Because each issue Petitioners have appealed is now moot and because they lack standing to maintain an appeal of those issues, the Court should dismiss the Petition outright. Respondent nevertheless will address the merits of each issue.

II. THE COURT OF APPEALS WAS CORRECT IN FINDING THAT THE PROBATE COURT HAD JURISDICTION TO APPOINT A SPECIAL FIDUCIARY (PETITIONERS' ISSUE I).

The Court of Appeals correctly affirmed the Probate Court's appointment of a Special Fiduciary to receive and hold estate assets based on the Probate Court's exclusive original jurisdiction over all subject matter related to estates of decedents to the fullest extent permitted by the Constitution. SC Code Ann. § 62-1-302(a) (2015). (App. 796). The Court of Appeals relied on Ulmer v. Ulmer for the proposition that South Carolina Code § 62-1-308(h) "does not apply to all orders of the probate court concerning the parties. The only proceedings required to cease [on appeal] are those proceedings addressed in the orders from which an appeal was taken." 632 S.E.2d 858, 861, 369 S.C. 486, 491-92 (2006). (App. 797). The Court of Appeals held that the estate issues were not related to the appointment of a special fiduciary in the conservatorship and that "the probate court had jurisdiction to appoint a special fiduciary under sections 62-1-302(a) and 62-3-614." (App. 797). At the time the Special Fiduciary was appointed, the only issues on appeal related to appointment of the Personal Representative of the Estate of Alice Shaw-Baker. The order discharging Lisa Fisher as Conservator was never

appealed. The Court of Appeals' determination that the Probate Court had jurisdiction to appoint a Special Fiduciary is correct.

As an additional sustaining ground, this Court may find jurisdiction is proper on the basis of South Carolina Code Section 62-1-302(f), which provides that when an action is removed to the circuit court "the probate court may, in its discretion, remove any other related matter or matters which are before the probate court to the circuit court if the probate court finds that removal of such related matter . . . would be in the best interest of the estate or in the interest of judicial economy." It further provides that "[t]he removal to the circuit court of an action or proceeding within the exclusive jurisdiction of the probate court applies only to the particular action or proceeding removed, and the probate court otherwise retains continuing exclusive jurisdiction." S.C. Code Ann. § 62-1-302 (2017). South Carolina Code Section 62-5-403 provides that the Probate Court has "exclusive jurisdiction to determine how the estate of the protected person which is subject to the laws of this State must be managed, expended, or distributed . . ." S.C. Code Ann. §62-5-403(2) (2017).

Petitioners offer no statutory authority or case law to demonstrate how and why the Court of Appeals erred in finding the Probate Court had jurisdiction over the assets of Mrs. Shaw-Baker. Petitioners' argument is erroneous as it ignores the fact that two different probate cases are being discussed in their appeal: the Guardianship and Conservatorship of Alice Shaw-Baker wherein Lisa Fisher was appointed (and discharged as) Guardian and Conservator (probate case no. 2008-GC-10-088) and the Estate of Alice Shaw-Baker wherein Bessie Huckabee was appointed Personal Representative (probate case no. 2009-ES-10-937, Circuit Court case no. 2009-CP-10-3010). (App. 455, 287). The court did not remove the conservatorship matter to the Circuit Court pursuant to S.C. Code § 62-1-302(f) and therefore retained jurisdiction over the

conservatorship proceedings until such time as the assets were transferred to the personal representative of the estate.

Probate Code Section 62-5-306 states that “[t]he authority and responsibility of a guardian for an incapacitated person terminates upon the death of the guardian or ward.” Section 62-5-430(A) instructs that any interested person may petition the court to terminate the conservatorship. S.C. Code Ann. § 62-5-430(A) (2017). Petition for Discharge of Conservator was filed with the Probate Court on March 2, 2009 (App. 201) and, after proper notice and hearing, the Court executed Order discharging Lisa Fisher as conservator and terminating the conservatorship on May 11, 2009 (App. 52). The Court found that:

South Carolina Probate Code Section 62-5-425(c)(1) states that the Conservator, when satisfied that the disability has ceased, shall petition the court. That Petition is one for discharge. Subpart (d) of Section 425 informs the conservator, as part of her duty and under the jurisdiction of this Court, that if a protected person dies, the Conservator shall delivery [sic] the estate assets. The Court finds that upon the death of Ms. Shaw-Baker, the conservator should have petitioned this Court for discharge. The unambiguous meaning of this statute is to terminate the authority of the Conservator and deliver the estate assets to the Personal Representative of the estate . . . This Court finds that the conservatorship shall terminate based on the death of the ward. (App. 53).

Additionally, the Court ordered that Lisa Fisher be discharged in her duties as Conservator and that she had to provide an estate accounting and turn over all estate assets to the personal representative.¹⁰ However, the Conservatorship assets remained in Ms. Fisher’s control in contravention of Court Order after her authority as Conservator was terminated. In the hearing on appointment of Special Fiduciary, Judge Curry stated that:

Ms. Fisher is no longer able to act in her fiduciary capacity as conservator. There has never been a motion to have her restored in the interim, so when we look at the accountings, then everything should be status quo, and there should be, other

¹⁰ Lisa Fisher filed *Memorandum in Opposition to Discharge, etc* on April 29, 2009 (App. 219) and then, inexplicably, filed Petition for Discharge of Guardianship and Conservator [sic] on May 29, 2009 (App. 246) after she had already been discharged by Court Order.

than interest, no activity because she doesn't have the authority, and no one has the authority to act on behalf of the conservatorship . . ." (App. 548, 553, trans. 13).

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